Basketball Game Tonight

The Port Weekly

Prepare For Regents

Vol. XII. No. 13.

Port Washington Senior High School, Friday, January 10, 1936

Price: Five Cents

State Exams Week Of 20th

Regents Board Revises Test Schedule

The Regents and school examinations for the first semester will be given during the week of January 20. All the Regents examinations which are given in this school are during the first four days of the week. Any pupil who has more than one subject scheduled for one-half day should make sure that the teachers of the subjects know of the fact in advance. All pupils should be in the examination room at least fifteen minutes before the beginning of the class. The morning examinations are to start at 9:15 A. M. and close at 12:15. In the afternoon the examinations will start at 1:15 P. M. and close at 4:15 P. M.

Changes Listed

There have been several changes in the Regents schedule which are effective for the first time this The examination for semester. Typewriting has been changed from Monday afternoon to Monday morning. Latin 2 is now Monday afternoon instead of Tuesday af-Economics will also be held Monday afternoon. Latin 3 has been changed from Tuesday afternoon to Wednesday P. M. Latin 4 has been changed from Tuesday afternoon to Thursday P. M.; English 3 will be held Thursday P. M. instead of Tuesday morning. Physics is to be given Tuesday P. M. instead of Thursday. French 3 is now Wednesday P. M. instead of Wednesday A. M. Spanish 3 has also been changed to the same time as French 3. Int. Algebra-Wednesday A. M. in place of Thursday. History A has been changed from Wednesday to Thursday A. M. Trigonometry will be given Thursday A. M. Solid Geometry will be given Thursday A. M.

Columbia Sponsors Press Conference

The Columbia Scholastic Press Association will hold its 12th annual convention at Columbia University on the 12th, 13th and 14th of March, 1936. At this time the Association newspaper contest will be magazine nounced.

Each newspaper is to be rated in its own classification as to type of school and number of students attending the school. The entry blank calls for information regarding the attendance, budget, advertising, printing, staff and con-

of the paper issued previous to schools wrote fan letters to the Kelley, who did the work on last January 15, 1936. These issues are principals of the cast. Natalie year's book, was among the first judged by authorities who are to Frost as "The Pink Fairy," Mary to bid. The Collier Publishing award places to the student news- West as "The Princess," and Miss Company, who did the 1934 book, papers. This year a new award Hawthorne who explained the story also fixed a bid. Other companies is to be given. It is the "All to the children, received the ma-Columbian" title to the best paper. jority of the letters, many of which ing Corporation, William C. Pop-A maximum of 1,000 points may be obtained for features, creative "to a beautiful lady," and "Your literary work, and advertising.

Alumnae Design Costumes



Port graduates win honors at the Traphagen School of Fashion for costumes designed for the Beaux Arts Ball. Standing from left to right the artists are Florence Colby and Rosemary Seraphine. Seated: Ruth Mathieson and Lois Butterworth.

Holiday Program | More Pictures

Grade School Matinee Prompts Fan Letters

"The Christmas Bill," which was presented the last part of December, proved a financial success. This playbill, presented by the Red Domino, airracted approximately 325 play-goers. The proceeds amply covered the expenses, netting \$35 profit for the Red Domino.

The first play 'Cradle Song," which was well received by an enthusiastic audience. The parts of the Prioress, the Vicaress. Sister Joanna of the Cross, and Antonio were the most applauded.

Fairy Tale Is Presented

For the second half of the program, Miss Hawthorne's Pantomime Class presented "Sleeping Beauty." The choregraphy for this fairy tale was by Miss Hawthorne; music by Tschaikowsky.

A matinee of "Sleeping Beauty" was presented for the grade children of the Sands Point, Flower with this blank are sent copies Hill, and Main Street schools. The for the printing and engraving of following day, pupils from these this year's "Port Light." Robert W were signed "Your ardent admirer,"

Financial Success For 'Port Light'

Retakes Of Senior Pictures To Be Friday, January 17

Photography for the 1936 "Port Light," which is being done by the Apeda Studio, has been completed except for the group pictures, and Thirty out or the spring sports. 150 Seniors handed in their proofs before the Christmas holidays and those who haven't received their orders will get them through the mail C.O.D. On Wednesday, January 15, a representative from the Apeda Studios will be here at 2:49 to take the proofs, and orders for photographs from the rest of the Senior Class.

Printing Bids Submitted

On Friday, January 17, Apeda Photographers will come to this school and photograph all those individuals, including the faculty, who haven't been taken. As there are some 60 persons to be taken, the photographers are expected to start shooting early. The schedule will be posted on the bulletin board as soon as possible.

Many bids have been submitted competing are the Gettinger Printper and Company, Doubleday Doran Publishers, and the Abbey Printing Company.

Great Neck To Play Port Five

First Conference Game To Be Played Tonight

HARD GAME PREDICTED

Varsity Has Many Available Subs For Encounter

By GEORGE BANGS

The vacation is over and it is time for the basketball team to get down to serious work. The remaining schedule is by no means a cinch, and of course it is not too hard for the Blue and White forces. The majority of the games yet to be played are conference tilts with Mineola, Great Neck, Glen Cove, and Manhasset. Port has two games to play with each of the aforementioned teams, leaving two outside games with Adelphi and the Alumni Club.

The first league game will be played tonight at Great starting in the neighborhood of 8 o'clock. Great Neck has always been considered a strong foe on the courts, continually creating one upset after another. As vet the Neckers are an unknown quantity, and nothing can be or will be learned until the two teams line up tonight. Regardless of any pregame ballyhoo, the match undoubtedly be a spirited and hard fought contest.

Many Subs Available

The Port five that will start the game will probably be the same combination that triumphed over Hicksville and the Alumni before the holiday recess. Joe Augustino and 'Shorty' Rogier at the forward posts, Stan Smith and Oscar Petersen at the guard positions, and Irving Petersen at center. Coach Jostello has a fine crop of substitutes to use when the time comes. The subs that have seen ervice in a varsity game are Tony Augustino, Zig Zaremba, Willie Piurek, Eddie Dumpson, Shiley, John Duncan, and Mike Romeyko. These lads are backbone of the Junior Varsity team and have showed marked improvement as the season has pro-

Two Victories Scored

A brief review of the two games already played by Port show two decisive victories over its opponents. On December 13 the boys went to Hicksville and whipped a highly tooted Orange and Black team, 31 to 24. Joe Augustino was high scorer with a total of 10 Then, on the following points. Wednesday, the Blue and White trounced a very weak Alumni team. The final score showed the count of 33 to 18. Again Joe Augustino was high scorer for Port. Albie Palmenteri also scored eight points to tie for individual honors. The last quarter of this game presented a complete substitute team on the court for Port. If the boys in Blue and White play tonight as they have in the two previous games, they should not have much trouble subdueing Great Neck.



The Port Weekly

Published weekly during the school year by the students of the Port Washington High Schools, Port Washington, N. Y. Subscription rate: \$.60 per school year; \$.35 per semester; single copy, 5 cents. By mail, \$1.00 per annum. Linotyped and printed by The Township Press, Roslyn, N. Y.



Rita A. Hennessy

EDITOR IN CHIEF	
Associate Editors Arthur Cornell, Margaret Rinehart	(
News Editor Frederick Turkington	
Features Jean Lowry Rewrite Man Margaret Bacmeister	
Copy Desk Editor Marjorie Griffes	4
Sports Editors E. Jenkins, R. Mazur, G. Bangs	
Music Editor John Wilkie	

Contributors: R. Loomis, R. Van Name, D. Davenport, E. Oglethorpe, W. Rundle, B. Talmage,B. Cornell, B. Templin. Office Staff and Typists: G. Lien, G. Keates, N. Frost, H. Smith, F. Villani, A. Pray, J. Procelli, A.

Romeyko. Faculty Advisers Evelyn Shirk Senior High.

Jean Smith Junior High. H. Curtis Herge

Circulation Manager. VOL. XII. NO. 13.

JANUARY 10, 1936

New Year's Resolutions

WITH the passing of 1935 it is natural to suppose that most of us have made resolutions for the new year. Generally speaking, we make resolutions with all good intentions of keeping them, but, when it comes to carrying out our good intentions, we don't get very far-that is, generally speaking. Making resolutions is all too simple. One merely says to one's self, "Well, from now on I'm go-One merely says to one's ing to do some work and get good marks for a change." That's all there is to it. The resolution is made and all too frequently forpotten

Breaking resolutions is even more simple and one of many human failings. A perfect remedy for not breaking resolutions is to stop making them, but after all what would the new year be without resolutions? Seriously though, breaking a resolution is really breaking a promise to yourself, true enough, but nevertheless a promise. Resollutions should be taken far more seriously by everyone in general. Most of us make resolutions and then go right out and break them. If we don't intend keeping our resolutions it would perhaps a better idea not to make any in the first place.

This year it might be a good idea to make fewer and keep more resolutions. Probably no matter what we say you'll go ahead and do as you please anyway but let us suggest that you seriously consider you resolutions before making them and as a consequence fewer will be broken.

Port Weekly Box

IT has always been the policy of The Port Weekly to represent the interests and activities of the students at large. Yet there are not more than 20 students, who, as the staff of reporters collect and write up each week the school news. Even if they had the nose for news of Alexander Woolcott, the eyes of Argus, and seven league boots, they could not hope to get all the available news.

And so, for the convenience of the students a box has been placed on The Port Weekly door for news donations. We, the staff, ask you to contribute to it, not only news but any comments you wish to make about the paper. Remember The Port Weekly is your paper, and represents you, the 496 students of the school. It is only by your suggestions and help that we can attempt to make The Port Weekly the school paper you wish to have represent Port Washington High School.

Inquiring Reporter

THE QUESTION: What is your favorite popular song now and why?

Irving Petersen, a Senior, said: "I prefer 'Round and Round' because it's different from the usual popular song. A novelty orchestra could do it justice. I think it is one of the most unusual songs that has been written in several years."

Andrew Johnson, a Junior, replied: "My favorite song right now is 'You're An Angel' because it neminds me of so many people I know. The melody haunts me. In spite of all the recent song hits this is still my favorite song, so it must have something."

Dorothy Leavitt, a Senior, stated: 'Dinner For One, Please James' is my favorite song because it has an unusual title and tune. Another reason I like it is because it is so different from 'Round and Round' which I loathe."

June Mayer, a Junior, answered: 'I like 'Sing Before Breakfast' because it gets you into a good mood before coming to school in the morning. The words are very cute and the tune is catchy."

Lillian Kohanska, a Sophomore, responded: "I like 'Round and Round' because I think the melody is grand and the words are different. It's a good song to dance

Exchanges

Out of a growing pile of publications sent from out of town schools the following bits of quaint humor have been found:

> When you Started this You thought it Was a poem, By now, You see You were Mistaken Isn't it funny How people will Continue to read Something even When they know They're being Fooled?

> > -"The Bear Skin"

Young lady (in antique shop): "-and here, I suppose, is another of the horrible portraits you call 'art'."

Shop Keeper: "Excuse me, Miss, but that's a mirror."

Question: Why is a clock like a pretty girls?

"The Segya."

Year End Vacation Brings Hockey, Leap Year, Alumni, And Resolutions

By MARGARET BACMEISTER

New Year's resolutions are in order and the new paper man always swears yearly to reveal to the public all the dirt that comes under his Roman nose so here goes. It is noised throughout the town that the Y. P. F. dance was one of the high-points of the season, everybody in town except the people I interviewed being there. Cold hard statements clamor that all together a grand total of twelve dollars, sixty-one quarters, fifty-eight dimes, one hundred and seventynine nickels and six hundred and ten pennies were cleared by the association. (Final results from the committee in the next issue. Advt.) The association has given itself a new president, one Robert of the Port Washington Reads. President Read is a graduate of the Port Washington High School but has not yet entirely freed himself from the grip of the old haunts.

Keates Star Forward

Brown's pond was the scene of several hotly contested hockey battles featuring Tom Keates, the star forward; the little brother, George; Andrew Johnson, a rapidly rising goalie; and Art who does his best to keep the younger member of the family in his place. Also at Brown's pond, but at about 9 P. M., appeared Danny Weitzner in search of a chess partner. It seems that he attempted to instruct the elder Johnson boy in this manly art. Danny knows that he slipped up somewhere in the lessons because Art took him over in the second battle. Nowhere in the vast wastes of the pond could a likely victim be dragged up and Danny went wearily home to break New Year's resolutions. Gene Seraphine took a New Year's vow to shun the weaker sex in view of the dangers of Leap Year. He started off Monday disguised in a shirt guaranteeing safety from all but the colorblind but even they could hear it

Alumni Inmates Back

Then to add to the general confusion all the former inmates were back. Ginnie Church was back from Elmira with a sales-talk like Peaches Brown explaining the height of the buildings at Cornell Peaches himself was back filled with curiosity on the subject of child behavior problems. Numerous of the better New York shows received the benefits of Port Washington patronage. Several attended "Romeo and Juliet" among them Zechie who reports that she liked the balcony scene, that Romeo broke his ankle dueling Thursday, that Katherine Cornell isn't used to playing with such a short nurse, and a nice usher told her all about it. Zechie, Edith and Ethel, and Connie Chalkley also took in "Jumbo" which is a pretty big take for little girls like them. Lewis Deane holds the endurance record with six shows to his credit. From this wealth of dramatic art Lewis gleaned the fact that the chandeliers in the Shubert need dust-

Freeman in Florida

While the rest of us poor mortals have been sleeping, shoveling snow and listening to various nonentities in "Push the first valve down," Mavis Freeman has been residing at the Miami-Biltmore in Florida. Her swimming got her there and I can't mention the reason because of don't mean she traversed the dis- a New Year's resolution. tance between here and there a la poisson. Anyway Mavis done Answer: Because it's all race and herself proud, which pleased us looking sophomore boys running figure and has no head to speak of. all, especially H. Curtis Herge who around whose names we (the senior always enjoys a good scoop.

This and That

There are only 290 shopping days before Christmas.

The Port Weekly is at last the proud possessor of a box for contributions which now decorates the door of Room 111. You will find out all about it if you read the second editorial on this page. If you are not in the habit of reading editorials, this is to tell you that any spicy little bits of humor and news that you put in said box will be greatly appreciated. We have several little items from this source already.

The first says: "Who always returns the library books of a certain girl to the library every mornin?" This was a trifle abstruse (vague) but nothing can discourage us, so we consulted our helpful librarian, Miss Pelton. After an instant's reflection she responded that it sounded like that Lord boy, who usually returns books signed out by Nancy Thompson.

Another anonymous contribution says: "Another famous couple has split up. This time it's Florence Kurejwo and Stanley Smith who have hit the skids. Smitty drug (past tense of drag) Audrey Jones to the Fratry dance and since then he has been making a play for Dot Schauer, using a glove as an excuse. Harold Thomas has been holding Florence's hand by way of consolation."

New Year's resolution are a little bit late but here are a few. Zech Rinehart says, "I resolved to be different this year." She neglected to say what she was going to be different from. Walter Rundle, remembering his unadulterated diet of asperins for a week after New Year's Eve, resolved not to imbibe any more this year . . . just as much. We have a few resolutions to make ourselves. From now on we won't mention, more than once a week, such outstanding personalities as Sam Shiley, the wavy haired Romeo, and his many loves, or Ray Mazur, the man who plays the base vile, his black Pontiac, or the Estates Beach.

There is a mysterious bet of a dollar involving June Fuller, Bob Lang and Vinnie Brooks. It should be settled by Saturday night, when Vinnie is taking the lady rollerskating.

Apparently the irresistible Arthur Smith Moore has been turned down on a date for the next school dance. The girl is from Douglaston and we

Quoting Jean Lowry: "Isn't it too bad that there are so many nicegirls) don't even know."

Written and Edited by the Students of the Junior High School

The Port Junior

Violet Levy, Student Editor

JUNIOR

some time ago, Miss Della D. Bunk has kept her promise to answer all notes addressed to her. All of them could not be published but here goes:

Dear Miss Bunk.

Effie my girl friend has seen so much of John Beal that she refuses to see me until I acquire a wave in my hair. I use curlers every night, have bought hair lotion and sit up most of the night trying to become a John Beal, but all my work is in vain. I am desperate. What can I do?

Howard Smith's kid brother, "Smitty"

Ans.-Dear Smitty,

Your's is a perplexing problem, but I'm sure you will find a solution from your class-mate Richard Johnson. He was recently observed emerging from the "Cora & Bessie" beauty parlor with the grandest wave. The work is good, the prices are cheap, and Effie will love you, so why not try it?

Dear Miss Bunk,

Do you think my mother is fair in not permitting me to attend the movies alone or stay out later than 9:30? She claims I'm still too young and innocent.

Sweet Maid of Forty. Ans.-My Dear Young Maid,

I sincerely believe that you should be given a chance to spread your wings, for as Mr. Perkins says, "Life Begins at Forty."

Dear Della Bunk,

Why haven't the girls taken advantage of my charming personality and extremely good-looks?

Mr. B. Bessel. Ans.-Why not "take a tip from Casanova?' D. B.

I am a demure Junior High girl who naturally has a boy-friend. He is very attentive but has never kissed me. Why?

Rosy Lips. Ans.-Loretta, less lipstick, more kisses.-Della.

Dear Miss Della Bunk,

I like a boy in the 9A. An-dy says his girl-friend is the sister of a boy with a red bicycle who is older than she. This might be me. How can I tell?

An 8A Christmas Carol. Ans.-Dear Christmas Carol, You can't!-Della.

Dear Miss Moore Bunk,

I am a peaceful Junior High citizen. However, I am confronted with an embarrassing situation. One of my masculine teachers always teases me about my girl. He even writes my love-letters on the board. Is there anything I can

Hopefully yours,

F. J.

Ans.—Dear Josty,

Get revenge and tease this teach-Della.

Santa Pays Visit To Our Teachers

Many Remain In Port; Others Travel Or Visit **Friends And Relatives**

was surprised to see that many of our teachers were not out gallivanting and making the most of the holiday but were sleeping serenely in their Port Washington Among those who rehomes. mained here and spent a quiet Christmas (they claimed they needed the rest) were Miss Mandigo, Miss Avery, Mr. Lewis, Mr. Haron, Mrs. Stannard, Mr. Costello, Miss Mallon, Mr. Brubaker, and Mr. Markle. Mr. Brubaker says, however, that he read several good books and especially commends the 'Stars Look Down," and Mr. Markle announces that he pushed his first go-cart.

Weather Foils Miss Hansen

Miss Hansen contemplated a delightful journey to the Berkshires and a New Year's party, but bad driving weather spoiled her plans, and she stayed at Bay Ridge, Brooklyn. Miss MacLaren spent the vacation with her family in Sault St. Marie, Michigan; Miss Thorn indulged in all winter sports

When Santa Claus descended the at Milford, N. Y., and Miss Rees many chimneys this Christmas, he could have been found in New Hartford. Miss Clark enjoyed herself at Dansville, Virginia, sledding down a big hill which was roped off for that purpose. Miss Patterson took a trip to New Orleans and had a grand time eating delicious French foods.

Some Go North

Miss Atwater spent a cold, snowy vacation at her father's farm near Ithaca, and Miss Armer was located at Ballston Spa while Mr. Keeley was in Saugerties, N. Y. Miss Carey went home to Middletown, N. Y., Mrs. Brazeau went to Washington, D. C., and was certainly "hitting it high." She satisfied a sudden desire to go up in a Blimp. Mr. Hulbert was in the vicinities of Forestport, Greenwich, and Poughkeepsie where he skated and hunted. He said all he caught was a cold, so we see that Mr. Hubert can never equal Frank Buck.

Yet with all the fun of Christmas vacation our teachers were surely just as eager as we were to return to school.

Shakespeare 'Takes It' -And Likes It!

Poor, old, defenseless Shakespeare! That noble statue in Miss Mallon's room has been sorely abused again. The old fellow has occupied his position of dignity in the school for a long time, and never, never has he been so humiliated as this term.

During October some wicked students concocted an even "wickeder" plan of placing a disgraceful, conspicuous dunce cap on Shakespeare's really brilliant head and further arrayed him in embarrassing bows and menals. was thus appropriately dressed for Hallowe'en.

Santa Comes To Town

Recently he was again disguised in the quaint costume of our dear friend, Santa Claus. Shakespeare then possessed a beautiful white beard and a dashing red jacket and hat. Of course, he had his bag with a present for Miss Mallon in it.

Yet the old boy sure can take it, and nary a word of protest was heard. Perhaps he doesn't care because he certainly gets plenty of satisfaction watching Miss Mallon's English class trying to make sense of his writings. So we have no guilty conscience in laughing at him because he doesn't wear the latest styles.

Sport Council Meetings

Sport Council members are urged to report to their meetings, as a great deal of new business is waiting to be discussed.

Notices for the meetings will be er about his girl. Besides judging posted on the girls' bulletin board posite Miss Atwater's room.

Boys' Basketball Practice Begins

Coach Haron opened the junior high basketball season on Tuesday, December 17. Although many turned out, the number was a bit shy of last year's record crowd of 110.

Anyone with an F in any subject will not be allowed to participate in basketball this year, unless he gets special permission from his teacher. As usual everyone will have to have the doctor's O. K. before playing.

First Coach Haron gave full instructions as to how he was going to run things. After going through some exercises and tossing baskets the practice wound up with two laps around the track.

On Thursday, December 19, the second last practice before the vacation took place. Coach Haron gave some important points about shooting, dribbling and passing. The pace around the track was stepped up one lap ending the prac-

Bank Day Discussed In Home Rooms

The homeroom meeting topic of January 6, was concerned with banking. It had been discovered that many students were dissatisfied with Monday afternoon for banking and preferred having it on Tuesday again. Since this was the condition, the first question of the homeroom discussion was: or should not be changed back." ing. The last two questions were: "Can influence more pupils in putting and "Why is our school bank one bank?" These were intended to leaving the building? ing in school.

Graduation Play Begin Rehearsals

W. Effertz In Title Role Of "Raspberry Red"

The graduation play which marks the end of this term is being directed by Miss Mallon. She has chosen a two act play called 'Raspberry Red" by Yorke, All the members of the cast were selected from the 9B groups, and the play is now in rehearsal.

Bill Effertz portrays the leading role as "Raspberry Red," and other important parts are taken by Warren Kunz, David Wysong, Mary Redfield, Eileen Montfort, Alan Gould, Pat Evans, Doris Fenton, and William Farnsworth. Van Name has undertaken the responsibility of stage manager.

Graduation day is set for Janu-

Girls Prove Active In School Athletics

7A Students Are Urged To Participate In Sports

There are many girls' sports available in Junior High. Some of them are; baseball, basketball, hockey, volleyball, tennis and soccer. The majority of the Junior High girls like basketball, baseball and hockey the best.

Many of the girls enter into every sport so that they might earn numerals, letters and some eventually win the medal which is awarded to the girl in the graduating class who has earned the most points in her three year term in Junior High.

Basketball Practice Starts

There were quite a few girls at the first basketball practice held on Friday, December 6th, but many more were to report at practice Monday the 9th.

Enough girls turned out for practice so that three teams could be started in 12-court basketball.

Each year Miss Crampton has started the girls in 12-court basketball first so that they will be more accurate on their passes. Also, each girl will get a chance at playing different positions.

Need 7A's Help

Again, basketball is frantically calling for 7A's, as Miss Crampton is anxious to start the girls who have not had basketball be-

Come on girls, join the basketball squad and become healty, happy, and popular.

Student Council Active

In the last few months the student council has improved rapidly according to the fine homeroom "Give your reasons why it should meetings that we have been hav-

Some of the questions put to the you offer any suggestions that will council are the following: Will the tennis court be repaired? What their savings in our school bank?" should we do if a fire occurred while passing through the halls? of the best places for pupils to Which doors should be use when Is homefrom the above mistle, you can and also on the bulletin board op- create a greater interest in sav- work allowed in the library per-

Girls Play First Basketball Game

Team Opens Season Against Manhasset Squad

As we go to press the girls' basketball team will have opened its season against Port's traditional rival, Manhasset. The squad received its first cut which reduced the attendance to 40 in number, and the starting line-up will be chosen from this group.

The favored combination finds Eloise Jenkins, Anna Mae Seaman and Sophie Slaska at forward positions, with Florence Kurejwo, Dorothy Davenport and Gloria Alexander at guard posts. The possible exception may be Alexander who might be shifted to a forward's job if she continues to click in that position. At any rate she's a sure bet to open.

Probable Starters

E. Jenkins and Anna Mae Seaman are the most likely starters at forward, with either Sophie Slaska, Betty Fiijon or "Alex" joining them. A sure duo at guard is Florence Kurejwo and Dorothy Davenport, with "Dot" Schauer, Stephanie Slaska and Dorothy Hamm out doing one another for the remaining position.

Other aspirants are Carmela Muro, Dorothy Suydam, Mary Rose Jenkins, Arlina Griese and Lillian Kohanska at forward, and Merlin and Geraldine de Pauw at defending positions.

This game is a true test of Port's ability, the team is still raw and under-practiced, but every hope is extended them by Miss Maher.

New Basketball Games Planned

Tap Dancing Classes To Be Held Wednesdays

Miss Maher has announced that in addition to the regular varsity basketball practice she will hold an informal practice on every other Friday. These afternoons any girl interested in basketball except those already on the varsity may play in the gymnasium. The games will be conducted on a Round-robin basis and are expected to give a chance to the girl whose interest in basketball is handicapped by a busy program making the full time practice impossible. Each team is to be given the name of a wellknown girls' college and will be played off accordingly.

P. M. Dancing Classes

At the same time plans were made public for folk and tap-dancing classes to be held on Wednesday afternoons from 3:30 to 4:30 in the gymnasium. These classes will not be started until the commencement of the spring term. All girls interested are urged to turn out as the classes will supplement those which are being given at the present time in the regular gym classes. More advanced tap work will be taken up and also some folk-dancing. The classes will not however in any way approximate the Pantomime classes under the direction of Miss Hawthorne.

s-P-O-R-T-s

By RAY MAZUE

In a recent all-Nassau County football team picked by a sports editor of a local newspaper, the names of Joe Augustino and Arthur Carmichael appeared in the line-up. Augustino was highly praised for his fine play at end, and Carmichael was also commended on putting up a good game at center. Although Glen Cove finished last in the North Shore league, they received the most places on the team. Needless to say, the writer is a native of Glen Cove.

Port's basketball team will return to the wars tonight and will play its first league opponent, Great Neck. The game will be played in the enemy's spacious gym with the Blue and White installed as the pre-game favorites. By the decisive victories over such tough opposition as Hicksville and the Alumni, Port established itself as one of the leading contenders for the title.

The problem of "Ed" Dumpson probably is of no little concern to Coach Costello. Last year Dumpson played a good game at center and was destined for a chance at the same spot this year. His lack in showing up for practice during the first part of the season didn't help his chances, and "Ed" was shunted to the second team. As the season rolls along Dumpson will undoubtedly come up to form and be ready for the first team. It would be unwise to break up the team with Irving Petersen at center, but in case "Pete" goes on one of his foul making sprees, Dumpson will be ready to substitute in his place. Incidently, "Shorty" Rogier is the first player to be put out of a game on account of fouls. In spite of his size, "Shorty" plays an aggressive game and is a real asset to the team.

Fifteen future Charley Paddocks and Glen Cunninghams turned out for indoor track last Monday. "Eggie" Lewis, John Linder, and John Carlson were the only veterans present. Tomorrow the first track meet is to be held in New York City by the Manual Training High School; the Stuyvesant meet will take place a week later. Last year "Eggie" Lewis was the only point winner; he came in second in the 440 yard dash and should repeat this year.

Coming Attractions

Tonight — Basketball Game: Great Neck vs. Port at Great Neck High School gym. 8 P. M. Thursday, January 16—Girls' Basketball Game: Glen Cove vs.

Port at Port. 4 P. M. Friday, January 17—Basketball Game: Mineola vs. Port at Port. 8 P. M.

January 20-23—Regents Week. Friday, January 24—Basketball Game: Manhasset vs. Port at Manhasset High School gym. 8 P. M.

WELFARE RECEIVES TOYS

The Village Welfare Society received a box of toys for distribution from the High School before the holidays. The toys were collected from the students by the Celerity under the direction of Miss Sammis.

In addition to the donations of toys, several faculty members contributed money. Both the toys and money were greatly appreciated, and acknowledged by the secretary of the Village Welfare Society in a letter sent to Miss Sammis this week.

Fratry Dance Great Success

The annual Fratry dance was a great financial and social success. A large number of the alumni and most of the student body were present. The club lists the total attendance at over 220. More than \$45 was cleared by the association. The hall was decorated in blue and gold, the club colors, and large numbers of balloons. Eddie Gunther's orchestra supplied the music and punch was served.

Eight Students Receive Awards

Regents Diplomas Are Issued To Graduates

Eight members of the graduated class of '35 were awarded College Entrance Diplomas recently by the State of New York for having completed an approved four years' high school course and passing five specified comprehensive Regents examinations with a minimum average of 75 per cent.

Contrary to popular belief, the College Entrance Diploma does not admit students to the college of their choice unless they have fulfilled the subject requirements for admission to their particular college. The diploma was so named because the examinations required are in the subjects necessary for admission to the majority of colleges throughout the country.

Diploma Notations

These diplomas are issued without notation, with credit, or with honor. The first notation is added to them if the recipient has attained an average in the exams from 85 per cent to 89 per cent. The pupils that earn College Entrance Diplomas with honor must have a Regents average of above 90 per cent.

The graduates whose diplomas have just been received with their notations are Helen Burgess, credit; Virginia Church, credit; Lucille Haynes, honor; Frederick Kaufman, credit; Margaret Moore, honor; Calvin Raff, credit; Jeanne Roberts, honor; Victor Weidner, credit. Only students with College Entrance Diplomas are on the eligible list for State Scholarship awards. One of the ten scholarships offered to pupils in Nassau County was won by Margaret Moore, the class salutatorian.

Mavis Freeman Named To Squad

Represents W.S.A. In Swimming Meets In Florida

Mavis Freeman, prominent member of the Port Washington Senior High School student body, has been recently selected by the Women's Swimming Association to represent them, with others, at the Florida Olympics. She has been spending the last two weeks in the South, competing in swimming matches and tryouts for the aquatic team which will represent the United States in the coming World Olympics.

In the last few years, Mavis' rise as a swimming star has been notable. After winning the championship of the Port Washington Yacht Club, she joined the Women's Swimming Association where, under the supervision of some of the best swimmers in the country, she developed the technique that has caused her to be spoken of highly by several of the metropolitan dailies and as a result of which she has won numerous medals and cups.

Swims With Eleanor Holm

During the summer, Mavis added to her laurels by showing in the three mile race conducted at Zach's Bay and won by Miss Eleanor Holm, although she was the youngest one entered. Later she spent some time in the Adirondacks doing exhibition swimming. She also gave demonstrations at one of the Glen Cove Clubs.

Mavis is being looked upon as the future hope of the Wlomen's Swimming Association, and although the final Olympic team is not selected until a few days before sailing time, her associates have great hopes for her success.

First Annual Youth Concert To Be Given

Tomorrow, Saturday, January 11, the first of the annual Youth Concerts given by the New York Philharmonic Orchestra will be presented. This concert under the direction of Ernest Schelling, famous conductor and composer, will be given at Carnegie Hall at 1

Approximately 16 members of the Senior High School are to attend this concert. Reservations have already been made and the pupils will go to Flushing in the school bus and then to New York on the subway.

on the subway.

These concerts have been given for 11 years under the direction of Mr. Schelling and have been well received by the young people who have attended. The music as well as various instruments will be explained.

Minstrel Show Jan. 16

Thursday evening, January 16, the Boys' Glee Club will present a Minstrel Show. The performance will start at 8:15 and there will be no admission charge. The interlocutor will be Ernest Dahl. The boys will sing several negro songs and will be accompanied on the piano by Ruth Morris. The end men are Robert Lamberti, Charles Miller, J. McBrian, H. Harrison, J. Lee, L. Romagna, and W. Bushman. Special acts will be given by James Wilkie, Eugene Seraphine and Gordon Campbell.